
 

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Jane Connolly (jane.connolly@northyorks.gov.uk) Tel:  
or e-mail  

Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

Notice of a public meeting of  Business and Environmental 
Services - Corporate Director and 
Executive Member - Highways and 
Transportation 

To: Councillors Keane Duncan. 

Date: Friday, 21st October, 2022 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: MS Teams  

 
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s 
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision 
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee.  Following on from the expiry 
of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority 
and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for 
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 21 July 
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, 
remote live-broadcast committee meetings should continue (as informal meetings of the 
Committee Members), with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive 
Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers 
and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee 
Members. 
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings    Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also 
available there. 
 

Business 
 
Items for Executive Member decision 
 

 

1.   Disposal of Assets – Gantry Crane  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

Items for Corporate Director decision 
 

 

2.   Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus  (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

 
 

OFFICIAL 

(Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
Date Not Specified 

Page 2



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 - Executive Members 
Disposal of Assets – Gantry Crane/1 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Briefing Note for Executive Members 
 

21 October 2022 
 

Disposal of Assets – Gantry Cranes 
 

Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation 
 

1.0 Purpose of Briefing Note 
 
1.1 To seek approval for disposal of Assets with a Disposal Value of Between £20,000 

and £100,000 – Tadcaster Gantry Cranes 
 

 
2.0 Background 

 
2.1 The gantry cranes are owned by North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) and were 

purchased as part of the Tadcaster Rebuild Scheme by the scheme contractor 
Balfour Beatty on behalf of NYCC.  At the time of purchase it was agreed that the 
cranes would become a council asset following the completion of the rebuild. The 
cranes are of a bespoke design with custom lengths to suit the rebuild job. The 
assets were in working order when they were last used around 2017-18 and have 
been stored at the Leeming Bar Depot since. All motors have been kept within our 
storage container.   

 
2.2 It is not expected that the cranes will be useful in the foreseeable future for bridge 

repairs.  The scope of the works for the Tadcaster rebuild was such that it needed 
simultaneous works on two arches and the cost of having 2 mobile cranes on site 
meant the gantry cranes where more cost effective and hire was not possible. 

 
2.3 The gantry cranes have not been used since they were dismantled following the 

completion of the Tadcaster works.  They have recently been offered to all 
directorates and NY Highways and there has been no interest in making use of them.    

 
2.4 The space available at the Leeming Bar Depot is limited and congested, and these 

cranes take up a considerable amount of space.  A review of the available space 
across the highways depots has been carried out and there is no suitable alternative 
location to store them and therefore it is considered more appropriate to dispose of 
them to free up storage and operational depot space. 

 
2.5 Following discussions with the procurement team, disposal has been suggested by 

through the Yortender portal using sealed bids.  However the option of using a 
private auction venue is still being considered. 

 
 
3.0 Equalities 
 
3.1 No equalities issues are raised by the matters addressed in this Report.   
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 - Executive Members 
Disposal of Assets – Gantry Crane/2 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

4.0 Finance 
 
4.1 The total purchase price was c. £78,000, the cost being met from the Local Transport 

Plan (LTP) grant funded element of the project.  It is estimated that we could expect 
to recoup £20,000-25,000 from the sale of the cranes. 

 
4.2 The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources has given consent to the disposal on 

the proviso that we seek to secure best value for the sale of the assets and retain 
evidence of having done so. This is being achieved through either the Yortender 
portal through sealed bids or through an auction house specialising with construction 
plant. 

 
4.3 There is no requirement to repay grant to Department for Transport and the intention 

is to reinvest the capital receipt from the disposal of the cranes in the annual Road 
Footbridges capital budget which is funded by LTP grant, as this is a key area where 
we have a backlog of structures that require maintenance/replacement.  

 
5.0 Legal 
 
5.1 The cranes are owned by NYCC and were bought as part of the Tadcaster Rebuild 

Scheme by Balfour Beatty. The Cranes were passed to the council following the 
completion of the rebuild. As such, we are able to dispose of the council assets with 
no legal complications.  

 
6.0 Climate Change 
 
6.1 The matters addressed in this report do not directly impact on the Council’s response 

to climate change. 
 
 

7.0 Recommendation 
 
7.1 It is recommended that the proposal to dispose of the assets for an appropriate price 

and to reinvest the subsequent capital receipt into the Road Footbridges Fund be 
approved.  

 

 
 
BARRIE MASON 
Assistant Director 
Highways and Transportation 
 
 
Author: Josh Calvert 
 
Background Documents:  
 

 E6SE657_GA_1 Rev 2 (Sheet 1 of 2) 

 E6SE657_GA_1 Rev 2 (Sheet 2 of 2) 

 Photos 

Page 4



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/1 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Executive Members 
 

21 October 2022 
 

Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus 
 

Report of the Assistant Director – Highways and Transportation 
 

1.0 Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 This report requests approval for the allocation of the Civil Parking Enforcement 

(CPE) annual surplus and use of the CPE reserve general working balance for the 
2022/23 and 2023/24 financial year. 

 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 For traffic management purposes, on-street parking charges are in operation in 

Harrogate, Knaresborough, Scarborough, Filey, Whitby and Northallerton.  As a 
consequence of these charges and other income received through the administration 
of CPE, after operational costs have been met, a surplus is generated.   

 
2.2 The permitted uses for any surplus arising from CPE are set out in Section 55 (as 

amended) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. The Act limits how local 
authorities can spend any surplus income in respect of parking places, once 
expenditure and the costs of the enforcement operation have been met. The surplus 
can be used for parking, or alternatively where the provision of further off-street 
parking accommodation is unnecessary or undesirable, the surplus can be used for 
public transport, highway or road improvement projects or environmental 
improvements. The surplus can be spent anywhere in North Yorkshire as the whole 
county is a designated Civil Enforcement Area.  

 
2.3 The Deeds of Arrangement governing the CPE operation with Harrogate and 

Scarborough Borough Councils include a provision whereby the County Council is 
required to invite proposals from the Borough Councils for expenditure of the surplus. 
There is then a requirement to prioritise the proposals and communicate the decision 
to the Borough Councils. There has been engagement with both Harrogate and 
Scarborough Borough Councils, which are included and considered later in this 
report. 

 
2.4 Previous to this report, the Corporate Director for Business and Environmental 

Services (BES) in consultation with the BES Executive Members took a decision on 
the allocation of CPE surplus income in November 2019.  That decision approved 
the annual funding or contribution from the CPE budget to highways and transport 
operations and services as well as specific investments in future highways 
improvement projects for the 3 financial years 2019/20 to 2021/22 inclusive. 

 
2.5 Prior to 2016, the CPE surplus was not fully reinvested and consequently over a 

number of years accrued a substantial reserve.  This general working balance has 
since been allocated to fund other projects identified in the North Yorkshire Strategic 
Transport Prospectus. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/2 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

3.0 CPE Surplus Commitments and Expenditure 
 
3.1 Table 1 below, sets out the approved list of services and projects that received 

funding from the CPE surplus in the previous 3-year investment period 2019/20 – 
2021/22, its total financial allocation and actual expenditure. 

 

Table 1: Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus: Allocation and Expenditure for 19/20, 
20/21, 21/22 (3 year combined total allocation £000’s). 

Commitments 
£ 
Allocated 

£  
Actual 

£ 
+/- 

Concessionary fares 3,593 1,451 -2,142 

Highway maintenance 1,650 1,650 0 

Scarborough Park and Ride  861 1,066 +205 

Whitby Park and Ride 778 435 -343 

CCTV 84 84 84 

Parking Engineer post  198 97 -101 

Signing and lining works 165 34 -131 

Major Scheme Development – traffic model updates 1,500 1,497 -3 

Contribution to Major Scheme Development  1629 1,200 -429 

Air Quality Management 300 287 -13 

Sustainable Transport Initiatives (Revenue) 300 263 -37 

Contribution to Highways 400 400 0 

Harrogate/York/Leeds Rail Line Improvements 2016 975 -1041 

Scarborough Parking Review 60 0 -60 

Ryedale Parking Strategy 40 41 +1 

Northallerton Parking Surveys 5 5 0 

Harrogate Smart Parking Project 35 35 0 

Hambleton NNDR 118 118 0 

Parking Management (Area 3) 54 54 0 

Bikeability 43 43 0 

A1M/A59 Junction 47 Improvement Scheme  635 635 0 

Total 14,464 10,370 -4,094 

 
3.2 Table 1 shows an overall underspend of £4.094k however, the surplus received was 

£7,678k with the CPE Reserve used to cover shortfall. In addition, some of the 
committed project funding has not been realised within this three year period for the 
reason(s) that the full investment was not required or due to a delay in delivery.  This 
remaining investment will be carried into this year’s allocation should it still be 
required. 

 
4.0 Future Investment 

 
4.1 Previously, the decision on the level of annual investment has been based on the 

 preceding year’s surplus, which in 2019 was £3.34m.  However, a substantial part 
 of the last investment period, particularly the 2020/21 financial year, was impacted by 
 the COVID 19 Pandemic and lockdown situations and social distancing measures.  
Consequently in 2020/21, the surplus reduced to £944k. Government grant funding of 
£777k was used to bridge the shortfall along with the use of the CPE Reserve.  
However, with the gradual easing of restrictions and reopening of businesses and 
services over the 2021/22 financial year, CPE income has started to return to a near 
pre covid level with a surplus of £2.76m in 2021/22.  

Page 6



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/3 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

4.2 It could reasonably be expected that this surplus will be similarly achieved in 
2022/23, but parking demand is influenced by a range of factors such as weather, 
national events and economy.  Given the national economic situation, the increase in 
cost of living and changes to working arrangements, it may have an impact on visitor 
numbers to towns.  Therefore, it is recommended that a forecast surplus of £3.00m is 
applied to the 22/23, 23/24 and 24/25 financial years. 

 
4.3 It is proposed that the majority of the commitments which formed the previous list and 

their respective funding values remain (plus inflation where required) unless the 
service or project has concluded. There is also the need to consider other projects 
and services that have been established or required additional or an alternative 
funding source, for example Bikeability Training.  Members should note that the 
funding shortfall for Bikeability, which the Council has traditionally met from the CPE 
allocation, is likely to increase in 23/24 to £111K.  Officers are currently in the 
process of considering options for managing this cost rise and these will be the 
subject of a separate BES Executive Members’ report in November.   

 
4.4 In consideration of the above the proposed use of the CPE Surplus income in 

2022/23 and 2023/24 is shown in Table 2, below; 
 

Table 2: Civil Parking Enforcement: Annual Surplus Allocation 
2022/23 and 2023/24 

Forecast Annual Surplus Income £3.00m 

 
Commitments 

 
Summary 

Allocation 
2022/23 
(£000’s) 

Allocation 
2023/24 
(£000’s 

Concessionary 
fares 

Contribution towards the concessionary 
fares budget to reimburse operators. 

900 1,243 

Highways 
Maintenance 

Contribution to Highways maintenance. 950 950 

Demand 
response 
travel 

Contribution towards the demand 
response travel budget to reimburse 
operators. 

200 150 

Scarborough 
park and ride 

Contribution towards the operational 
running costs. 

299 299 

Whitby park 
and ride 

Contribution towards the operational 
running costs. 

270 270 

Signing and 
lining works 

On-going works to ensure signing and 
lining is in accordance with the Traffic 
Signs Regulations and General 
Directions. 

58 59 

Major scheme 
development 

Funding of Major Scheme development 
work. 

500 0 

Air quality 
management 

Funding for development and 
implementation of Air Quality 
Management Strategy. 

100 100 

Sustainable 
Travel 

Funding of work to support Sustainable 
Travel projects and initiatives. 

100 100 

Parking 
Engineer post 

Resource to provide capacity and 
expertise on traffic management and 
CPE. 

55 56 

CCTV Payment to Harrogate BC to access 
camera network. 

28 0 

Page 7



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/4 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Hambleton 
NNDR 

Business rate applied to on-street 
parking. 

50 50 

Scarborough 
parking review 

Contribution to funding the parking 
review of Scarborough Town Centre 

30 45 

Bikeability Contribution to bikeability cycle training 
scheme 

85 87 

Major Projects Junction 47 781 0 

LEVI funding Electric Vehicle Infrastructure 200 0 

Total Planned Expenditure 4,626 3,409 

   

Funded by   

   

Forecast CPE Surplus Income 3,000 3,000 

CPE Reserve  1164 0 

Superintendence Allocation 462 409 

Total planned funding 4,626 3,409 

   

Final Balance 0 0 

 
4.5 Typically, the CPE Surplus allocation is projected over a three year investment 

period however, due to Local Government Reorganisation and the need for further 
budget review, this has been reduced to 2 years and a further report will be 
presented in May 2023 for the financial year 2024/25.  Though it should be noted 
based on the current forecast income, expenditure may need to reduce to meet the 
available budget.  

 
4.6 Table 2 shows that planned expenditure in the financial years 2022/23 and 23/24 is 

greater than the forecast annual surplus income and use of the remaining CPE 
reserve. To maintain the existing level of investment and delivery of these services it 
is proposed to fund the remaining shortfall through the Superintendence Reserve. 

 
5.0 District Council Consultation 
 
5.1 In response to this engagement exercise, Harrogate Borough Council (HBC) 

submitted a formal response detailing a range of projects and service areas it would 
like to see new or increased investment of the surplus (see Appendix 1). In summary 
the main points of HBC’s response were; 

  West of Harrogate infrastructure improvements – funding to help develop the 
mitigation needed to support the developments at allocated sites in the west of 
Harrogate. This work is required to ensure appropriate mitigation is provided 
and reduce risk to the Local Highway Authority in terms of seeking funding from 
the developers (via S106).  

  ‘Top-up’ funding – to enable delivery of schemes that have already been 
identified and developed but funding shortfalls are risking delivery this could be 
due to insufficient funding requests via S106 or funding bodies, or where 
developer contributions have been returned, examples include schemes such 
as Victoria Avenue and Pannal / A61 cycle schemes. 

  Contingency for the Harrogate Transforming Cities Fund project – with inflation 
rising it would be prudent to budget for additional match funding from CPE 
surplus expenditure.  

  Additional capacity for Harrogate transport projects – there are significant 
projects underway in the Harrogate district and so extra resource would be 
welcomed to support these projects. 

 
 

Page 8



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/5 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

NYCC Response 
5.2 The work required to mitigate the west of Harrogate developments is currently being 

determined and a corridor study is in the process of being commissioned to better 
understand the potential impact to Otley Road from the increased traffic volume.  
This will take several months to complete, and any outcomes will similarly take some 
months to design and take through a governance process, so it unlikely that there 
would be a need to make an allocation from the 22/23 surplus.  Furthermore, the 
mitigation should be funded by the developers. 

 
5.3 It may be possible to allocate funding to top up shortfalls in already established 

projects depending on the value and each case would need to be considered in its 
own right and dependent on headway within the budget based on in year forecasting.   

 
5.4 It would not be possible to match fund the Transforming Cities Fund Project to 

provide some extra contingency as the surplus is fully committed for the continuation 
of delivering services and projects as set out in Table 2.  

 
5.5 There is typically an allocation for Major Transport Projects, of which there are many 

within Harrogate.  This will remain within the planned budget as set out in table 2.  
 
5.6 No response has been received from Scarborough Borough Council.  However, the 

County Council has continued its financial commitment to funding a major parking 
review in Scarborough, as shown in table 2. 

 
6.0 Equalities Implications   
 
6.1 No equality implications are considered to arise from the proposed use of the 

2022/23 and 2023/24 CPE surplus or the general working balance on scheme 
development and model updates / renewals or to address air quality issues. Any 
decisions taken in respect of a project or service would be subject to a specific 
equality impact assessment. An initial equality impact assessment screening form is 
presented in Appendix 2.  

 
7.0 Financial Implications    
 
7.1 The report sets out the use of CPE surplus annual allocation over the current and 

next financial year.  As set out in section 4 of this report, indicative planned 
expenditure is greater than forecast income over the 2 year period.  This is being 
bridged through the use of the remaining balance in the CPE reserve in 2022/23 and 
using the Superintendence Reserve if additional funding is required in 2022/23 and 
2023/24 to show an overall balanced position over these years. Given the call on the 
Superintendence Reserve, this will be the subject of a future report to BES Executive 
Members setting out the use of this Reserve. . 

 
8.0 Legal Implications 
 
8.1 Funding highway improvements is one of the permitted uses for surplus arising from 

CPE as set out in Section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (as amended), 
improvements being within the meaning of the Highways Act 1980 under the power 
of general improvements.  Section 55 also provides for the surplus to be used for 
meeting the costs incurred in the provision or operation of or facilities for public 
transport services and the purposes of environmental improvement.  Environmental 
improvement includes the reduction of environmental pollution, improving or maintain 
the appearance or amenity of a road or land in the vicinity of a road.   

 

Page 9



 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/6 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

8.2 Under Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 the Authority has a 
general duty when exercising functions under the Act to secure the expeditious, 
convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) 
and the provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway. 

 
9.0 Climate Change Implications 
 
9.1 There are no detrimental climate change implications considered to arise through the 

proposed allocation of the CPE Surplus and reserve.  A Climate Change Assessment 
is included as Appendix 3 to this report. 

 

10.0 Recommendations 
 
10.1 It is recommended that: 

i. The Corporate Director in consultation with the Executive Member for 
Highways and Transportation approves the allocation of the CPE Surplus as 
set out in Table 2 of this report and note the proposed spend of the 
Superintendence Reserve. 

 

 
Karl Battersby 
Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services  
 
 
Author of Report:  David Kirkpatrick 
 
 
Background Papers:  
 

Page 10



Appendix 1 
 

 

Place-shaping and Economic Growth | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate 

| HG1 9RW 

01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk 
NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 

Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/7 OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

 

 

Barrie Mason 
Assistant Director, Highways and 
Transportation 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
DL7 8AH 

Our ref: DHDSTW0422 

 

Date: 19th April 2022 
 

 

 

 

Dear Barrie 
 

Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) Surplus Expenditure Consultation 
 

Thank you for consulting Harrogate Borough Council (HBC) in relation to the 
surplus CPE monies. This letter of response has been drafted in consultation with 
Cllr Phil Ireland, the Cabinet Member for Carbon Reduction & Sustainability. 

 
As the exact amount of surplus is unknown we are working on the basis of the 
£3m estimate that has been provided, noting that £2m of which is income from 
Harrogate CPE operations. We also note that circa £1.1m will be needed for 
concessionary fares across the county. 

 
With the above in mind, the following are projects that we would like to see 
allocated funding from the CPE surplus: 

 

 West of Harrogate infrastructure improvements – funding to help develop 
the mitigation needed to support the developments at allocated sites in the 
west of Harrogate. This work is required to ensure appropriate mitigation is 
provided and reduce risk to the Local Highway Authority in terms of seeking 
funding from the developers (via S106). 

 

 ‘Top-up’ funding – to enable delivery of schemes that have already been 
identified and developed but funding shortfalls are risking delivery this 
could be due to insufficient funding requests via S106 or funding bodies, or 
where developer contributions have been returned, examples include 
schemes such as Victoria Avenue and Pannal / A61 cycle schemes 

 

 Contingency for the Harrogate Transforming Cities Fund project – with 
inflation rising it would be prudent to budget for additional match funding 
from CPE surplus expenditure. 

Page 11

http://www.harrogate.gov.uk/


Appendix 1 
 

 

Place-shaping and Economic Growth | Harrogate Borough Council | PO Box 787 | Harrogate 

| HG1 9RW 

01423 500600 www.harrogate.gov.uk 
NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 

Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/8 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
 
 
 
 

 Additional capacity for Harrogate transport projects – there are 
significant projects underway in the Harrogate district and so extra 
resource would be welcomed to support these projects. 

 

I hope this is helpful and will inform your decision on spending the surplus 
money available. If you require further information please don’t hesitate to 
contact with myself or my colleagues; David Stannard 
(david.stannard@harrogate.gov.uk) or Daniel Harper 
(daniel.harper@harrogate.gov.uk). 

 
 

 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
Trevor Watson 
Director of Economy, Environment & Housing 

Harrogate Borough Council 
 

Cc Karl Battersby, David Kirkpatrick 
 
 
 
 

Page 12

http://www.harrogate.gov.uk/
mailto:david.stannard@harrogate.gov.uk
mailto:daniel.harper@harrogate.gov.uk


Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/9 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Initial equality impact assessment screening form 

 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of 
equality to a proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate 
or proportionate.  
 

Directorate  Business and Environmental Services  

Service area Highways  

Proposal being screened Use of Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) surplus  

Officer(s) carrying out screening  David Kirkpatrick  

What are you proposing to do? Allocate the surplus arising from On –street Civil 
Parking Enforcement operations 

Why are you proposing this? What 
are the desired outcomes? 

The funding is ring-fenced via Sec 55 of The 
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 with any 
surplus remaining after all operational costs can 
be reinvested in parking, traffic management and 
other highways and transportation and 
environmental projects and services 

Does the proposal involve a 
significant commitment or removal 
of resources? Please give details. 

 Yes 
 
The surplus typically annually equates to £3.00 
million and funds many project and services 

Is there likely to be an adverse impact on people with any of the following protected 
characteristics as defined by the Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed 
characteristics? 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 

 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected 
characteristics? 

 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as 
important? 

 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal 
relates to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be a significant 
adverse impact or you have ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA 
should be carried out where this is proportionate. You are advised to speak to your 
Equality rep for advice if you are in any doubt. 
 

Protected characteristic Yes No Don’t know/No 
info available 

Age  x  

Disability  x  

Sex (Gender)  x  

Race  x  

Sexual orientation  x  

Gender reassignment  x  

Religion or belief  x  

Pregnancy or maternity  x  

Marriage or civil partnership  x  

NYCC additional characteristic 

People in rural areas  x  

People on a low income  x  

Carer (unpaid family or friend)  x  

Page 13

http://nyccintranet/content/equalities-contacts


Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/10 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Does the proposal relate to an area 
where there are known 
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g. 
disabled people’s access to public 
transport)? Please give details. 

No.  
 
 
 

Will the proposal have a significant 
effect on how other organisations 
operate? (e.g. partners, funding 
criteria, etc.). Do any of these 
organisations support people with 
protected characteristics? Please 
explain why you have reached this 
conclusion.  

No. 
 

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate:  

x Continue to 
full EIA: 

 

Reason for decision No equality implications are considered to arise 
from the proposed use of the 2022/23 and, 
2023/24 CPE surplus or the general working 
balance on scheme development and model 
updates / renewals or to address air quality 
issues. Any decisions taken in respect of a 
project or service would be subject to a specific 
equality impact assessment. 

Signed (Assistant Director or 
equivalent) 

 
Barrie Mason 

Date 12/10/22 

 
 

Page 14



Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/11 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Climate change impact assessment                                                                                                               
 
The purpose of this assessment is to help us understand the likely impacts of our decisions on the environment of North Yorkshire and on our 
aspiration to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2030, or as close to that date as possible. The intention is to mitigate negative effects and identify 
projects which will have positive effects. 
 
This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. The final document will be published as part of the decision 
making process and should be written in Plain English. 
 
If you have any additional queries which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Title of proposal Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) surplus  

Brief description of proposal Use of CPE surplus  

Directorate  BES 

Service area Traffic Engineering 

Lead officer David Kirkpatrick 

Names and roles of other people involved in 
carrying out the impact assessment 

Andrew Clare 

Date impact assessment started 1.9.22 

 
 
 
 

Please note: You may not need to undertake this assessment if your proposal will be subject to any of the following:  
Planning Permission 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
Strategic Environmental Assessment 
 
However, you will still need to summarise your findings in in the summary section of the form below. 
 
Please contact climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk for advice.  

 

P
age 15

mailto:climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk
mailto:climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk


Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/12 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

Options appraisal  
Were any other options considered in trying to achieve the aim of this project? If so, please give brief details and explain why alternative 
options were not progressed. 
 
None 
 

What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?  
 
Please explain briefly why this will be the result, detailing estimated savings or costs where this is possible. 
 
The proposal is to allocate the financial surplus arising from on-street Civil Parking Enforcement operations.  This surplus, which 
is in the region of £3m per annum is ringfenced by the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.  The Act limits how local authorities can 
spend any surplus income in respect of parking places, once expenditure and the costs of the enforcement operation have been 
met. The surplus can be used for parking, or alternatively where the provision of further off street parking accommodation is 
unnecessary or undesirable, the surplus can be used for public transport, highway or road improvement projects or environmental 
improvements. The surplus can be spent anywhere in North Yorkshire as the whole county is a designated Civil Enforcement Area 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 16



Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/13 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

How will this proposal impact 
on the environment? 
 
N.B. There may be short term 
negative impact and longer 
term positive impact. Please 
include all potential impacts 
over the lifetime of a project 
and provide an explanation.  

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

Explain why will it have this effect and 
over what timescale?  
 
Where possible/relevant please 
include: 

 Changes over and above business 
as usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 

 Figures for CO2e 

 Links to relevant documents 

Explain how you 
plan to mitigate any 
negative impacts. 
 

Explain how you 
plan to improve any 
positive outcomes 
as far as possible. 

Minimise 
greenhouse gas 
emissions e.g. 
reducing emissions 
from travel, 
increasing energy 
efficiencies etc. 
 

Emissions 
from travel 

X 
 

 The CPE Surplus subsidises public 
transport fares, making it cheaper for 
passengers to travel by bus 
encouraging fewer trips by private car. 
 
The surplus also contributes to the 
operation Park and Ride facilities and 
the development of major highway 
projects to reduce congestion, journey 
times and provision of active travel 
infrastructure to encourage walking, 
cycling and other modes of 
sustainable travel. 

  

Emissions 
from 
construction 

 X  The impact of construction of highway 
infrastructure is negated by the long 
term benefit of improving travel and 
encouraging modal shift to 
sustainable travel options. 

  

Emissions 
from 

 X     

P
age 17



Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/14 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

How will this proposal impact 
on the environment? 
 
N.B. There may be short term 
negative impact and longer 
term positive impact. Please 
include all potential impacts 
over the lifetime of a project 
and provide an explanation.  

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

Explain why will it have this effect and 
over what timescale?  
 
Where possible/relevant please 
include: 

 Changes over and above business 
as usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 

 Figures for CO2e 

 Links to relevant documents 

Explain how you 
plan to mitigate any 
negative impacts. 
 

Explain how you 
plan to improve any 
positive outcomes 
as far as possible. 

running of 
buildings 

Other  X     

Minimise waste: Reduce, reuse, 
recycle and compost e.g. 
reducing use of single use plastic 

 X     

Reduce water consumption  X     

Minimise pollution (including air, 
land, water, light and noise) 
 

X 
 

 Allocating funding to existing 
sustainable travel options and 
developing other improvement 
projects contributes to the reduction 
of vehicle usage and associated 
pollution from emissions and noise. 

   

Ensure resilience to the effects 
of climate change e.g. reducing 
flood risk, mitigating effects of 
drier, hotter summers  

X 
 

 Using this surplus to fund highway 
improvement projects to reduce 
congestions, delay and encourage 
modal shift to sustainable travel 
options contributes to fewer vehicle 

  

P
age 18



Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/15 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

How will this proposal impact 
on the environment? 
 
N.B. There may be short term 
negative impact and longer 
term positive impact. Please 
include all potential impacts 
over the lifetime of a project 
and provide an explanation.  

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
o

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(P
la

c
e
 a

 X
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
x
 b

e
lo

w
 w

h
e
re

 

re
le

v
a
n

t)
 

Explain why will it have this effect and 
over what timescale?  
 
Where possible/relevant please 
include: 

 Changes over and above business 
as usual 

 Evidence or measurement of effect 

 Figures for CO2e 

 Links to relevant documents 

Explain how you 
plan to mitigate any 
negative impacts. 
 

Explain how you 
plan to improve any 
positive outcomes 
as far as possible. 

miles and emissions and reduced 
environmental impact 

Enhance conservation and 
wildlife 
 

 X     

Safeguard the distinctive 
characteristics, features and 
special qualities of North 
Yorkshire’s landscape  

 

X 
 

 Reducing congestion, delay and traffic 
volume benefits the highway 
environment and interfacing 
environments 

 
 

 

Other (please state below) 
 

 X     

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



Appendix 2 

NYCC – 21 October 2022 – Executive Members 
Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus/16 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Are there any recognised good practice environmental standards in relation to this proposal? If so, please detail how this proposal 
meets those standards. 

 None 
 

 

Summary Summarise the findings of your impact assessment, including impacts, the recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, 
including any legal advice, and next steps. This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker. 
 
It is considered that the are no negative impacts within the assessment, as the proposals is to allocate the CPE surplus for the 
improvement of the highway network and encourage sustainable modes of travel. 
 

 

Sign off section 
 
This climate change impact assessment was completed by: 
 

Name David Kirkpatrick 

Job title Traffic Engineering Team Leader 

Service area Highways & Transportation 

Directorate BES 

Signature D.Kirkpatrick 

Completion date 1.9.22 

 
Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature): Barrie Mason 
 
Date: 12/10/22 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 20


	Agenda
	1 Disposal of Assets – Gantry Crane
	2 Allocation of Civil Parking Enforcement Surplus

